
Vestavia Hills  

City Council Agenda 

June 27, 2016 

5:00 PM 

1. Call to Order  

2. Roll Call 

3. Invocation – David Harwell 

4. Pledge Of Allegiance 

5. Candidates, Announcements and Guest Recognition 

6. City Manager’s Report 

7. Councilors’ Reports 

8. Financial Reports – Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director 

9. Approval of Minutes –June 13, 2016 (Regular Meeting)  

New Business  

10. Resolution Number 4848 – A Resolution Accepting The 2014-2015 Audit For The City 

Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

Old Business  

11. Resolution Number 4846 – A Resolution Ordering The Demolition Of A Building Or 

Structure Located At 1756 Indian Creek Drive, Vestavia Hills, Al 35243, Parcel Id# 28-

00-20-4-004-015.000, In Compliance With Sections 11-40-30 Through 11-40-36, 

Sections 11-53b-1 Through 11-53b-16, Inclusive, Of The Code Of Alabama, 1975, And 

In Compliance With Ordinance Number 2382 Of The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; 

And Calling For The City To Cause Said Demolition To Be Performed And Directing 

The City Attorney And The City Clerk To Cause The Cost Of Such Demolition To Be 

Charged Against The Land On Which The Building Or Structure Exists As A Municipal 

Lien Or Cause Such Cost To Be Recovered In A Suit At Law Against The Owner Or 

Owners  (public hearing) 

12. Resolution Number 4847 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Allow Use 

Of Overtime And The Hiring Of A Temporary, Part-Time Employee To Supplement 

Fire Department And Building Department Inspections (public hearing) 

 



New Business (continued) 

13. Resolution Number 4849 - A Resolution Declaring A Weed And Other Vegetation 

Nuisance Pursuant To Ordinance Number 2567 And Directing The City Manager To 

Abate Said Nuisance (public hearing) 

14. Resolution Number 4852 - A Resolution Authorizing And Directing The City Manager 

To Enter Into Two Agreements With EMS Management & Consultants, Inc.  

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

15. Resolution Number 4850 - A Resolution Accepting A Bid For SHAC Phase II And 

Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And Deliver An Agreement For Said 

Construction (public hearing) 

16. Resolution Number 4851 - A Resolution Authorizing The Purchase And Installation Of 

Vinyl Flooring Planks And Removal Of Existing Flooring For The Community Room At 

The Vestavia Hills Library In The Forest (public hearing) 

17. Citizens Comments 

18. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 

 June 13, 2016 

Page 1 

 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

MINUTES 

 

JUNE 13, 2016 
 

 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  

The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 

following: 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 

George Pierce  

      John Henley  

      Jim Sharp 

 

 

OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager  

Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 

      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 

      Dan Rary, Police Chief 

      Police Capt. Kevin York 

      Police Capt. Jason Hardin 

      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 

      Marvin Green, Deputy Fire Chief 

      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 

      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 

      George Sawaya, Asst. City Treasurer 

      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 

 

 

 Invocation was given by Jim St. John, Vestavia Hills Fire Chief, followed by the 

Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION, CANDIDATES 

 

 Mr. Pierce welcomed Angie McEwen who was in attendance representing the 

Chamber of Commerce: 

 Mr. Ammons introduced Anne Smyth, President of the Vestavia Hills Park and 

Recreation Board. 



City Council Minutes 

 June 13, 2016 

Page 2 

 

 Mr. Henley stated that the annual WingDing was done Saturday but the Principal 

Mortgage team defended their championship.  The event was held for the first 

time here at the City Hall with probably more than 2,000 people in attendance. 

 Mayor Zaragoza stated that the first “First Friday” was held in the Rocky Ridge 

area hosted by the area merchants.  Like anything else, there were a few glitches, 

but was a great event and well attended.  July 1 will be the next “First Friday.”  

This area is the first entertainment district and the Council is trying to find the 

other two prime locations for an entertainment district. 

 Mr. Ammons thanked the first responders who helped with safety and traffic 

control and also the help from the Wing Ding. 

 Mr. Pierce announced that Thursday, June 30, is I Love America Day which will 

still be held at Wald Park. 

 Mr. Downes stated that the giant slide at Morgan Drive and Limerock Road will 

be held on June 25 from 9 AM until 6 PM.  The event is close to being sold out. 

 

 

CANDIDATES 

 

 Kimberly Cook introduced herself and announced that she is running for City 

Council in the upcoming municipal election. 

 

 Bob Elliott introduced himself and announced that he is running for City Council 

in the upcoming municipal election. 

 

 Mayor Zaragoza introduced himself and announced is he was running for Mayor 

in the upcoming municipal election. 

 

 George Pierce introduced himself and announced that is was running for City 

Council in the upcoming municipal election. 

 

 Steve Ammons introduced himself and announced that he is running for City 

Council, Place Number 3, in the upcoming municipal election. 

 

 John Henley introduced himself and announced that he is running for City 

Council, Place Number 1, in the upcoming municipal election. 

 

 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 

Mr. Downes updated the Council on road and sidewalk projects with expected dates of 

completion: 

 The repaving of Rocky Ridge Road from Shades Crest Road to Lorna Road has 

begun.  Assuming weather holds, they are hoping to complete the paving of the 

project within the next few weeks.  Striping and reflectors, along with more 

drainage and shoulder work will be done as weather and timing allows. 



City Council Minutes 

 June 13, 2016 

Page 3 

 

 Paving of Tyler Road, Columbiana Road and Overton Road will hopefully begin 

soon.  A pre-construction meeting was held and the City is hoping the paving will 

be forthcoming soon, but this is a state funded project and subject to ALDOT. 

 A retaining wall design is being completed and the Massey Road project will 

move to ALDOT for approval and hopefully will be put to bid soon. 

 A multijurisdictional project for paving of Sicard Hollow Road is being designed 

and will be put out for bid soon by the County. 

 Another multijurisdictional project, the paving of Cahaba River Road with four 

jurisdictions, including Birmingham, which is the only entity that has not signed 

the agreement.  Meetings have been held with Birmingham officials and they 

have indicated that they will participate and the hopes are that the County will 

accelerate these documents through biding. 

 Residential paving bids of city streets should be sent out soon.  The bid specs are 

on the City Manager’s desk and once reviewed and approved, bid packets should 

be ready soon. 

 Mr. Downes updated the Council on the City building sidewalks rather than going 

through ALDOT for funding because of design costs. 

 Mr. Downes stated that his administrative assistant has been working on a 

projects page to allow the public to view ongoing project progress.  It’s such a 

load of information, it hasn’t been released yet to the public.  He asked everyone 

to be patient for this project to be unveiled. 

 

 

COUNCILORS’ REPORTS 

 

 Mr. Ammons stated that the Wald Park Committee has met with the consultants 

and has given them direction as to the priorities of the redesign of the park and 

they hope to come back with recommendations within the next few months. 

 

 . 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

 The minutes of May 16, 2016 (Work Session) and May 23, 2016 (Regular 

Meeting) were presented for approval.   

 

MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of May 16, 2016 

(Work Session) and May 23, 2016 (Regular Meeting) and approve them as 

presented was by Mr. Pierce and second by Mr. Henley.  Roll call vote as 

follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 

    Mayor Zaragoza – yes    Motion carried. 

 

 

 

 



City Council Minutes 

 June 13, 2016 

Page 4 

 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4840 

 

Resolution Number 4840 - Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And Deliver 

Agreements With Various Entities For Design Services And Construction 

Specifications For The Western Entrance To The Proposed Recreational 

Fields Located On The Former Altadena Valley Country Club (public 

hearing) 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4840 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Sharp. 

 

 Mr. Downes indicated that the Council had recently approved the purchase of 

some property from Jefferson County and a part of the International Park property in 

order to develop an alternate entrance to the former Altadena Valley Country Club on the 

proposed recreational park area.  This Resolution authorizes the City Manager to execute 

an agreement for $50K for design, $15K for engineering and inspection services and an 

allowance for construction testing and materials.  The EDG contract is one of the 

contracts in this Resolution was reviewed by Mr. Boone who recommended some 

amendments.  These revisions have been agreed to by the officers of EDG. 

 

 Mr. Boone reviewed his recommendations and explained the reasons for the 

recommendations. 

 

 Mr. Downes stated that this is professional services and not subject to bid and the 

funding will be derived from Capital Projects. 

 

MOTION Motion to amend the agreement attached to Resolution Number 4840 

pursuant to Mr. Boone’s letter and with said recommendations was by Mr. 

Pierce and second was by Mr. Ammons.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 

    Mayor Zaragoza – yes    Motion carried. 

 

 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 

the Council regarding the request, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the 

question.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 

    Mayor Zaragoza – yes    Motion carried. 

 

 

 



City Council Minutes 

 June 13, 2016 

Page 5 

 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4842 

  

Resolution Number 4842 – A Resolution Approving A License For Ironstone 

Concepts LLC D/B/A Ironstone Pizzaworks For A 040 On Or Off 

Premise Beer License And A 060 Retail Table Wine (On Or Off 

Premises); John W. McPherson, Jr. And Thomas G. Gresham, 

Executives   (public hearing) 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4842 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Sharp.    

 

 Mr. Downes explained that this is a license request for a new restaurant.  The 

Police Department has reviewed the background and recommended approval. 

 

 Jim Walsh was present in regard to this request.  He explained the restaurant to be 

located in the City Center at 632 Montgomery Highway with ‘build your own pizza” 

where you pick your own toppings and then they bake it for you. 

 

 Mr. Pierce asked him about the training of employees. 

 

 Mr. Walsh stated that they are writing a manual giving complete instructions and 

they have a certified trainer and each employee will have to complete certification before 

serving. 

 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  No one was present in regard to 

this issue.  The Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 

    Mayor Zaragoza – yes    Motion carried. 

 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4843 

 

Resolution Number 4843 – A Resolution To Appoint A Member To The 

Birmingham-Jefferson County Transit Authority 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4843 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 

 

 The Mayor explained that Andrew Edwards was previously appointed as the 

City’s representative on the Transit Authority when the population changed and allowed 

Vestavia Hills a representative.  Mr. Edwards was unable to complete his term, so the 

Council has requested that the other applicant fulfill the appointment.  Mr. Donald A. 



City Council Minutes 

 June 13, 2016 

Page 6 

 

Harwell, who had filled in during a health issue of Mr. Edwards, was kind enough to 

accept the appointment and fill the remainder of Mr. Edwards’ appointment.  He 

indicated that he is recommending the appointment of Mr. Donald A. Harwell which will 

expire in 2018. 

 

 Mr. Sharp thanked Mr. Edwards for his service over the last 4 years and wished 

Mr. Harwell well during the remainder of the appointment. 

 

The Mayor called for the question. 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes 

    Mayor Zaragoza – yes    Motion carried. 

 

 Mr. Harwell thanked the Mayor and the City Council for this appointment and 

indicated this is a tough board and he is willing to represent the City well. 

 

 The Mayor then introduced Ms. Kierston Bryant, who has volunteered to 

represent Vestavia Hills on the Citizen Supervisor Committee for the transit system.  The 

Mayor stated that this is a tough position to fill and Ms. Bryant volunteered for it.  He 

thanked her for her willingness to serve and she thanked the Mayor and Council for the 

opportunity to serve in this capacity. 

 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4844 

 

Resolution Number 4844 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager 

To Enter Into A Remediation Agreement Regarding Property 

Located At 2216 Brookdale Lane, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4844 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 

 

 Mr. Downes explained that this Resolution allows he and the Mayor to execute 

and deliver a remediation agreement on a house that had begun renovation but never 

finished the project.  This agreement is agreed upon by both the owner and the mortgage 

company that put together a schedule of construction-related activities to remediate the 

situation and will satisfy the terms of this agreement if completed by August 15.  If not, 

the mortgage company will have the ability to finish and if not, the City will have the 

ability to terminate the nuisance. 

 

 Mayor Zaragoza indicated that the owner and his mortgage company have both 

agreed to the terms of the agreement. 

 

 Mr. Henley asked how long the construction project has been ongoing. 

 



City Council Minutes 

 June 13, 2016 

Page 7 

 

 Mr. Downes stated that it has been well over 18 months and he doesn’t know the 

reason for the delay other than probably financial. 

 

The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one, he called for the 

question. 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mayor Zaragoza – yes   

        Motion carried. 

 

** Mr. Sharp stepped out of the Chamber. 

 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4845 

 

Resolution Number 4845 – A Resolution Setting A Public Hearing For Adoption Of 

Various 2014 & 2015 National And International  Building Codes 

With Amendments 

 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4845 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Henley.   

 

 Mr. Downes explained that this Resolution calls for a public hearing for the 

adoption of several new building codes.  The public hearing is scheduled for July 11, 

2016. 

 

The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one, he called for the 

question. 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes 

   Mr. Ammons – yes  Mayor Zaragoza – yes   

        Motion carried. 

 

** Mr. Sharp remained out of the Chamber. 

 

 

FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 

 The Mayor stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 

presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting on June 

27, 2016 at 5 PM. 

 Resolution Number 4846 – A Resolution Ordering The Demolition Of A 

Building Or Structure Located At 1756 Indian Creek Drive, Vestavia Hills, Al 

35243, Parcel Id# 28-00-20-4-004-015.000, In Compliance With Sections 11-40-

30 Through 11-40-36, Sections 11-53b-1 Through 11-53b-16, Inclusive, Of The 

Code Of Alabama, 1975, And In Compliance With Ordinance Number 2382 Of 

The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; And Calling For The City To Cause Said 



City Council Minutes 

 June 13, 2016 

Page 8 

 

Demolition To Be Performed And Directing The City Attorney And The City 

Clerk To Cause The Cost Of Such Demolition To Be Charged Against The Land 

On Which The Building Or Structure Exists As A Municipal Lien Or Cause Such 

Cost To Be Recovered In A Suit At Law Against The Owner Or Owners  (public 

hearing) 

 Resolution Number 4847 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To 

Allow Use Of Overtime And The Hiring Of A Temporary, Part-Time Employee 

To Supplement the Fire Department And Building Safety (public hearing) 

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 

 Michel Chaudry, 1759 Indian Creek Drive, stated that he lives across the street 

from the property described in the Resolution that they are talking about in the 

announcements.   

 

 Kathryn Ayres, 4421 Dolly Ridge Road, stated she was under the impression that 

she should come back and give an update to the Council regarding the weed abatement 

on her property.  Mayor Zaragoza stated that she was supposed to be meeting with Mr. 

Coleman and the abatement would be up to him.  She stated that she was concerned about 

drainage and making the improvements to the property, but there will be a 2-week time to 

get to digging around the property and she’s still concerned about the drainage issue. 

 

 The Mayor indicated that the homeowner was supposed to meet with Mr. Brady 

and with Mr. Coleman.  Mr. Brady stated he has been working with her on private 

property issues and they are trying to get them resolved.  She showed a picture of a grate 

located near the roadway and indicated it was responsible for some of her flooding issues. 

 

 Mr. Brady stated that the grate is lower than her property and located in an area 

where there was no way that structure could cause her water issues. 

 

 Chief York stated that Mr. Coleman reported that she has not met his 

specifications and he has solicited bids for the remediation of the work. 

 

 Ms. Ayres stated that the contractors cannot start digging and cannot address the 

issues. 

 

 The Mayor stated that she was supposed to be meeting with Mr. Coleman on his 

progress.  He recommended that she contact Mr. Coleman first thing in the morning 

because he was authorized to accept the bids to remediate if this had not been done. 

 

 Discussion ensued and again it was recommended that Ms. Ayers contact Mr. 

Coleman. 

 



City Council Minutes 

 June 13, 2016 

Page 9 

 

 Deborah Reinhardt, 1756 Indian Creek Drive, thought this was to be discussed 

tonight.   She stated that she has never been contacted by her HOA and that she hasn’t 

been notified. 

 

 Ms. Leavings explained that she did not pick up her notice from the Post Office so 

Mr. Coleman hand delivered it to her. 

 

 The Mayor recommended that she contact Mr. Blanton in Building Safety and 

return to the Council meeting on June 27 for the public hearing on that issue. 

 

 At 6:15 PM, Mr. Pierce made a motion to adjourn; seconded by Mr. Henley. 

Meeting adjourned at 6:16 PM.   

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor  

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4848 
 
 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE 2014-2015 AUDIT 

FOR THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
 
 WHEREAS, the audit for the fiscal year 2014-2015 has been submitted to the Mayor 

and the City Council for review; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council feel it is in the best public interest to 

accept the audit performed by Carr, Riggs, and Ingram, LLC. 

 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. That the City Council wishes to accept the audit for the fiscal year 2014-2015; 

and 

2. That a copy of the submitted audit be affixed to this resolution marked “Exhibit 

A.” 

 ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 27th day of June, 2016. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



































































































































Page 1 of 3 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4846 
 

A RESOLUTION ORDERING THE DEMOLITION OF A BUILDING OR 
STRUCTURE LOCATED AT 1756 INDIAN CREEK DRIVE, VESTAVIA 
HILLS, AL 35243, PARCEL ID# 28-00-20-4-004-015.000, IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH SECTIONS 11-40-30 THROUGH 11-40-36, 
SECTIONS 11-53B-1 THROUGH 11-53B-16, INCLUSIVE, OF THE CODE 
OF ALABAMA, AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH ORDINANCE NUMBER 
2382 OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA; AND CALLING 
FOR THE CITY TO CAUSE SAID DEMOLITION TO BE PERFORMED 
AND DIRECTING THE CITY ATTORNEY AND THE CITY CLERK TO 
CAUSE THE COST OF SUCH DEMOLITION TO BE CHARGED 
AGAINST THE LAND ON WHICH THE BUILDING OR STRUCTURE 
EXISTS AS A MUNICIPAL LIEN OR CAUSE SUCH COST TO BE 
RECOVERED IN A SUIT AT LAW AGAINST THE OWNER OR 
OWNERS  

 
WHEREAS, the Appropriate Municipal Officials of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

(“the City”), determined that the condition of the building or structure located at 1756 Indian 
Creek Drive, Vestavia Hills, AL 35243, Alabama, Parcel I.D. Number 28-00-20-4-004-015.000, 
is in such a condition as to make it dangerous to the life, health, property, morals, safety, or 
general welfare of the public or the occupants; 
 

WHEREAS, contemporaneously with the filing of “Finding of Public Nuisance, Notice 
and Order to Remedy and Notice of Lis Pendens” on May 5, 2016, a copy of same was sent via 
certified mail, properly addressed and postage prepaid, to: 
 

A. All person or persons, firms, associations, or corporations last assessing the 
subject property for state taxes to the address on file in the Jefferson County Tax Collector’s 
Office; 

 
B. The record property owner or owners (including any owner or owners of an 

interest in the subject property) as shown from a search of records of the office the Judge of 
Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, at the owner or owners’ last known address and at the 
address of the subject property; 

 
C. All mortgagees of record as shown from a search of the records of the office of 

the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, to the address set forth in the mortgage or, if 
no address for the mortgagee is set forth in the mortgage, to the address determined to be the 
correct address by the Appropriate Municipal Officials; 

 
D.  All lien holders of record as shown from a search of the records of the office of 

the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, to the address set forth in the statement of 
lien or, if no address for the lien holder is set forth in the statement of lien, to the address 
determined to be the correct address by the Appropriate Municipal Officials; and 

 



Page 2 of 3 

E. Such other persons who are otherwise known to the City Clerk or to the 
Appropriate Municipal Officials who could have an interest in the subject property; 

 
WHEREAS, contemporaneously with the filing of the “Finding of Public Nuisance, 

Notice and Order to Remedy, and Notice of Lis Pendens,” a copy of the same was posted at or 
within three feet of an entrance to the building on the subject property and posted in three public 
places located within the City: 1.) at Vestavia Hills City Hall, 2.) at the Vestavia Hills Library in 
the Forest, and 3.) at the Vestavia Hills Civic Center; 
 

WHEREAS, notice that the Appropriate Municipal Officials have made a finding that the 
subject property is a dangerous building because it is unsafe to the extent that it is a public 
nuisance and is subject to demolition and that a public hearing would be held on a certain date 
was also given to all interested parties and to the public at large by publication in the Alabama 
Messenger; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, while in regular session on Monday, June 27, 2016, as follows: 

 
Section 1. A Public Hearing was held on Monday, June 27, 2016, at 5:00 p.m. and 

after due deliberation the Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, finds that the structure 
standing at 1756 Indian Creek Drive, Vestavia Hills, AL 35243, Parcel ID# 28-00-20-4-004-
015.000, is unsafe to the extent of becoming a public nuisance to the citizens of the City and is 
due to be demolished in compliance with Sections 11-40-30 through 11-40-36 and Sections 11-
53B-1 through 11-53B-16, inclusive, of the Code of Alabama (1975), and Ordinance Number 
2382 of the City; 
 

Section 2. That the City shall cause said demolition to be performed by its own 
employees and/or by contractor(s); and 
 

Section 3. That the City Attorney and the City Clerk are hereby directed to cause the 
cost of such demolition to be charged against the land on which the building or structure is 
located and shall constitute a lien on the property for the amount of the assessment or cause such 
cost to be recovered in a suit at law against the owner or owners. 
 



Page 3 of 3 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 27th day of June, 2016. 

 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 

CERTIFICATION OF CITY CLERK 
 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 
 

I, Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby certify 
that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Resolution duly and legally adopted 
by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 27th day of June, 2016 while 
in regular session, and the same appears of record in the minute book of said date of said City. 
 
 Witness my hand and seal of office this _____ day of June, 2016. 
 
     ____________________________________ 
       Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 



Resolution No. 4846 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4846 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4846 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4846 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4846 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4846 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4846 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4846 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4846 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4846 - Exhibit A



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4847 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ALLOW 
USE OF OVERTIME AND THE HIRING OF A TEMPORARY, PART-
TIME EMPLOYEE TO SUPPLEMENT FIRE DEPARTMENT AND 
BUILDING SAFETY INSPECTIONS 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Manager has identified a need within the Fire Department and 

Building Safety inspections which have a temporary increase causing a 2-to-5 day delay in 

responding to inspections requests; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager, detailed said need to the City Council requesting an 

additional $32,000 to be appropriated from the General Fund to allow the use of overtime and 

hiring of a temporary, part-time employee to supplement Fire Department and Building Safety 

inspections.  A detailed explanation is attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 

4847 as though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in best public interest to accept the 

City Manager’s recommendation and appropriate an additional $32,000 from the General Fund 

as requested. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to use overtime and hire a temporary, part-

time inspector to assist with inspections in an amount not to exceed $32,000; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4847 shall become effective immediately upon approval and 

adoption. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 27th day of June, 2016. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution No. 4847 - Exhibit A



Resolution Number 4849 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4849 
 
 A RESOLUTION DECLARING A WEED AND 

OTHER VEGETATION NUISANCE PURSUANT TO 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2567 AND DIRECTING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE 

 
 WHEREAS, on May 11, 2015, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2567 to establish a procedure for the 

abatement of grass and weeds and for the prosecution and abatement of grass and weed 

violations; and 

WHEREAS, the City’s Compliance Officer has made a “First Demand” on the 

property located at 4004 North Cahaba Drive; a copy of which is marked as “Exhibit A,” 

attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4849 as if written fully therein; 

and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was conducted at the regularly scheduled City 

Council meeting of June 27, 2016 at 5:00 PM in which the facts of the matter were 

discussed; and  

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to 

declare the property a nuisance and direct the City Manager to abate said nuisance 

pursuant to the provisions set forth in Ordinance Number 2567; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. The property located at 4004 North Cahaba Drive is hereby declared a nuisance 

pursuant to the provisions of Ordinance Number 2567 and the City Manager is 

hereby authorized to abate said nuisance pursuant to the terms and provisions of 

said ordinance. 

2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its approval and 

adoption. 



Resolution Number 4849 
Page 2 

 
 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 27th day of June, 2016. 

 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4849



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4849



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4849



 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4849



 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4849



 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4849



 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4849



 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4849



 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4849



 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4849



 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4849



 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4849



Resolution Number 4852 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4852 
 

 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING 

THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO TWO 

AGREEMENTS WITH EMS MANAGEMENT & 

CONSULTANTS, INC. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the present medical transport billing service company wishes to 

terminate the service agreement as of September 1, 2016; and  

WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Fire Department would like to enter into a billing 

services agreement (Exhibit B) with EMS Management & Consultants, Inc., for medical 

transports performed by the Vestavia Hills Fire Department; and 

WHEREAS, compliance with the terms and conditions of Health Insurance  

Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and as amended from time to time “HIPPA” 

requires a business associate agreement (Exhibit C) by and between the City of Vestavia 

Hills and EMS Management & Consultants, Inc., to safeguard for protection of  protected 

health information “PHI” and regulate disclosure of all confidential information; and 

WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Assistant Fire Chief of Operations in a letter 

dated June 22, 2016 (Exhibit A) recommended the approval of said agreements; and 

WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills City Manager has concurred with Vestavia Hills 

Assistant Fire Chief of Operations for approval of said agreements; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have concurred with the City Manager 

and feel it is in the best public interest to enter into said agreements as presented and 

recommended by the City Manager.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. The City Council authorizes and directs the City Manager to enter into a billing 

service agreement and a business associate agreement with EMS Management & 

Consultants, Inc.; and 

2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its approval and 

adoption. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 27
th

 day of June, 2016. 

 

 



Resolution Number 4852 

Page 2 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 



 
 

VESTAVIA HILLS FIRE DEPARTMENT 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:  Jeff Downes 
 
FROM:  AC Terry Ray 
 
CC:  Chief Jim St. John 
 
DATE:  June 22, 2016 
 
RE:  Transport Billing Recommendation 
 
 
As you are aware, the company which presently provides transport billing services for the Fire 
Department has notified us that due to restructuring, they wish to terminate our services agreement 
September 1, 2016.  I have contacted the transport billing companies provide by ESO Solutions that 
import data from our current patient care reporting software.  After evaluating each of the 
respondents, I recommend the City Council authorize a contract with EMS Management and 
Consultants for our future transport billing services.  
 
EMS Management and Consultants has extensive experience with transport billing within the State of 
Alabama and provides services for the largest private transport service in this area.  This provides 
EMS Management and Consultants not only with experience with the Alabama the Medicaid system, 
but has established relationships with local hospitals and providers. 
 
Additionally, the rate quoted by EMS Management and Consultants is 4.55 percent of net collections.  
Based upon FY 2016 figures, this is very compliable to the eighteen dollars per transport currently be 
charged by our present billing company.  
 

Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit A



Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit B



Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit B



Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit B



Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit B



Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit B



Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit B



Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit B



Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit B



Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit B



Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit B



Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit B



Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit B



Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit B



Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit B



Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit B



Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit B



 
 
 

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT 
 

 This [Amended and Restated] Business Associate Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made 
effective the 26th day of May, 2016, by and between Vestavia Hills Fire Department, Alabama,  
hereinafter referred to as “Covered Entity,” and EMS Management & Consultants, Inc., hereinafter 
referred to as “Business Associate” (individually, a “Party” and collectively, the “Parties”).  
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

 WHEREAS, the Parties wish to enter into a Business Associate Agreement to ensure compliance 
with the Privacy and Security Rules of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 
(“HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules”) (45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) and the “Red Flag Rules” as found 
at 16 C.F.R. § 681.1 and applicable to creditors subject to the administrative enforcement of the FCRA by 
the Federal Trade Commission pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1681s(a)(1); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health (“HITECH”) 
Act of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Pub. L. 111-5, modified the HIPAA 
Privacy and Security Rules (hereinafter, all references to the “HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules” 
include all amendments thereto set forth in the HITECH Act and any accompanying regulations); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties have entered into a written or oral arrangement or arrangements (the 
“Agreements”) whereby Business Associate will provide certain services to Covered Entity and, pursuant 
to such Agreements, Business Associate may be considered a “business associate” of Covered Entity as 
defined in the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Business Associate may have access to Protected Health Information or Electronic 
Protected Health Information (as defined below) in fulfilling its responsibilities under the Agreements; 
[and  
 
 WHEREAS, prior to enactment of the HITECH Act, Covered Entity and Business Associate 
previously entered into a Business Associate Agreement and now intend this Agreement to supersede the 
prior agreement in order to comply with the requirements of the HITECH Act;] and  
 
 WHEREAS, Covered Entity wishes to comply with the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules, and 
Business Associate wishes to honor its obligations as a Business Associate to Covered Entity; and  
 
 WHEREAS, in the event that Business Associate is engaged to perform any activity in 
connection with any “covered account” of Covered Entity as defined in 16 C.F.R. § 681.1 (commonly 
referred to as the “Red Flag Rules” and applicable to any “creditor” or any “service provider” providing 
any service to such creditor with regard to a covered account), Business Associate agrees to fully adopt 
and comply with the Red Flag Rules as are currently in effect and as may be promulgated in the future, 
including but not limited to the adoption of a Red Flag program that is compliant with applicable federal 
regulations, and to take all necessary and appropriate steps to ensure that its activities are conducted in 
accordance with the Red Flag Rules designed to detect, prevent and mitigate the risk of identity theft.  
 
 
 

Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit C



THEREFORE, in consideration of the Parties’ continuing obligations under the Agreements, and for other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties 
agree to the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
I.  DEFINITIONS  
 
Except as otherwise defined herein, any and all capitalized terms in this Agreement shall have the 
definitions set forth in the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules. In the event of an inconsistency between 
the provisions of this Agreement and mandatory provisions of the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules, as 
amended, or the Red Flag Rules, the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules and the Red Flag Rules in effect 
at the time shall control. Where provisions of this Agreement are different than those mandated by the 
HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules or the Red Flag Rules, but are nonetheless permitted by the HIPAA 
Privacy and Security Rules or the Red Flag Rules, the provisions of this Agreement shall control.  
 
The term “Breach” means the unauthorized acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of protected health 
information which compromises the security or privacy of such information, except where an 
unauthorized person to whom such information is disclosed would not reasonably have been able to retain 
such information. The term “Breach” does not include: (1) any unintentional acquisition, access, or use of 
protected health information by any employee or individual acting under the authority of a covered entity 
or business associate if (a) such acquisition, access, or use was made in good faith and within the course 
and scope of the employment or other professional relationship of such employee or individual, 
respectively, with the covered entity or business associate, and (b) such information is not further 
acquired, accessed, used, or disclosed by any person; or (2) any inadvertent disclosure from an individual 
who is otherwise authorized to access protected health information at a facility operated by a covered 
entity or business associate to another similarly situated individual at same facility; and (3) any such 
information received as a result of such disclosure is not further acquired, accessed, used, or disclosed 
without authorization by any person.  
 
The term “Electronic Health Record” means an electronic record of health-related information on an 
individual that is created, gathered, managed, and consulted by authorized health care clinicians and staff.  
 
The term “HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules” refers to 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164 as currently in 
effect or hereafter amended.  
 
The term “Protected Health Information” means individually identifiable health information including, 
without limitation, all information, data, documentation, and materials, including without limitation, 
demographic, medical and financial information, that relates to the past, present, or future physical or 
mental health or condition of an individual; the provision of health care to an individual; or the past, 
present, or future payment for the provision of health care to an individual; and that identifies the 
individual or with respect to which there is reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to 
identify the individual. “Protected Health Information” includes, without limitation, “Electronic Protected 
Health Information,” as defined below.  
The term “Electronic Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information which is 
transmitted by or maintained in Electronic Media (as now or hereafter defined in the HIPAA Privacy and 
Security Rules).  
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit C



The term “Red Flag Rules” refers to the provisions found at 16 C.F.R. § 681.1 as applicable to financial 
institutions and creditors subject to the administrative enforcement of the FCRA by the Federal Trade 
Commission pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1681s(a)(1).  
The term “Red Flag” has the same meaning as provided within 16 C.F.R. § 681.1(b)(9) and means a 
pattern, practice, or specific activity that indicates the possible existence of identity theft.  
The term “Secretary” means the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services. 
 
The term “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information that is not 
rendered unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals through the use of a 
technology or methodology specified by the Secretary in guidance published in the Federal Register at 74 
Fed. Reg. 19006 on April 27, 2009 and in annual guidance published thereafter.  
 
II.  PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY BUSINESS ASSOCIATE 
  
 a. Business Associate may use or disclose Protected Health Information to perform functions, 
activities, or services for, or on behalf of, Covered Entity as specified in the Agreements, provided that 
such use or disclosure would not violate the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules if done by Covered 
Entity. Until such time as the Secretary issues regulations pursuant to the HITECH Act specifying what 
constitutes “minimum necessary” for purposes of the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules, Business 
Associate shall, to the extent practicable, disclose only Protected Health Information that is contained in a 
limited data set (as defined in Section 164.514(e)(2) of the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules), unless 
the person or entity to whom Business Associate is making the disclosure requires certain direct 
identifiers in order to accomplish the intended purpose of the disclosure, in which event Business 
Associate may disclose only the minimum necessary amount of Protected Health Information to 
accomplish the intended purpose of the disclosure.  
 
 b. Business Associate may use Protected Health Information in its possession for its proper 
management and administration and to fulfill any present or future legal responsibilities of Business 
Associate, provided that such uses are permitted under state and federal confidentiality laws.  
 
 c. Business Associate may disclose Protected Health Information in its possession to third parties 
for the purposes of its proper management and administration or to fulfill any present or future legal 
responsibilities of Business Associate, provided that:  
 
  1. the disclosures are required by law; or  
 
  2. Business Associate obtains reasonable assurances from the third parties to whom the 
Protected Health Information is disclosed that the information will remain confidential and be used or 
further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party, 
and that such third parties will notify Business Associate of any instances of which they are aware in 
which the confidentiality of the information has been breached.  
 
 d. Until such time as the Secretary issues regulations pursuant to the HITECH Act specifying 
what constitutes “minimum necessary” for purposes of the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules, Business 
Associate shall, to the extent practicable, access, use, and request only Protected Health Information that 
is contained in a limited data set (as defined in Section 164.514(e)(2) of the HIPAA Privacy and Security 
Rules), unless Business Associate requires certain direct identifiers in order to accomplish the intended 
purpose of the access, use, or request, 
 
 
 

Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit C



in which event Business Associate may access, use, or request only the minimum necessary amount of 
Protected Health Information to accomplish the intended purpose of the access, use, or request. Covered 
Entity shall determine what quantum of information constitutes the “minimum necessary” amount for 
Business Associate to accomplish its intended purposes.  
 
III.  OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF BUSINESS ASSOCIATE 
  
 a. Business Associate acknowledges and agrees that all Protected Health Information that is 
created or received by Covered Entity and disclosed or made available in any form, including paper 
record, oral communication, audio recording, and electronic display by Covered Entity or its operating 
units to Business Associate or is created or received by Business Associate on Covered Entity’s behalf 
shall be subject to this Agreement.  
 
 b. Business Associate agrees to not use or further disclose Protected Health Information other 
than as permitted or required by this Agreement or as required by law.  
 
 c. Business Associate agrees to use appropriate safeguards to prevent use or disclosure of 
Protected Health Information other than as provided for by this Agreement. Specifically, Business 
Associate will:  
 
  1. implement the administrative, physical, and technical safeguards set forth in Sections 
164.308, 164.310, and 164.312 of the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules that reasonably and 
appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of any Protected Health Information 
that it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of Covered Entity, and, in accordance with 
Section 164.316 of the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules, implement and maintain reasonable and 
appropriate policies and procedures to enable it to comply with the requirements outlined in Sections 
164.308, 164.310, and 164.312; and  
 
  2. report to Covered Entity any use or disclosure of Protected Health Information not 
provided for by this Agreement of which Business Associate becomes aware. Business Associate shall 
report to Covered Entity any Security Incident of which it becomes aware. For purposes of this 
Agreement, “Security Incident” means the successful unauthorized access, use, disclosure, modification, 
or destruction of Protected Health Information or interference with system operations in an information 
system, of which Business Associate has knowledge or should, with the exercise of reasonable diligence, 
have knowledge, excluding (i) “pings” on an information system firewall; (ii) port scans; (iii) attempts to 
log on to an information system or enter a database with an invalid password or user name; (iv) denial-of-
service attacks that do not result in a server being taken offline; or (v) malware (e.g., a worms or a virus) 
that does not result in unauthorized access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction of Protected 
Health Information.  
 
 d. Business Associate agrees to ensure that any agent, including a subcontractor, to whom it 
provides Protected Health Information received from, or created or received by Business Associate on 
behalf of Covered Entity, agrees to the same restrictions and conditions that apply through this Agreement 
to Business Associate with respect to such information.  
 
 e. Business Associate agrees to comply with any requests for restrictions on certain disclosures of 
Protected Health Information to which Covered Entity has agreed in accordance with Section 164.522 of 
the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules and of which Business Associate has been notified by Covered 
Entity. In addition, and notwithstanding the provisions of Section 164.522 (a)(1)(ii), Business Associate 
agrees to comply with an individual’s request to restrict 
 

Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit C



disclosure of Protected Health Information to a health plan for purposes of carrying out payment or health 
care operations if the Protected Health Information pertains solely to a health care item or service for 
which Covered Entity has been paid by in full by the individual or the individual’s representative.  
 
 f. At the request of The Covered Entity and in a reasonable time and manner, not to extend ten 
(10) business days, Business Associate agrees to make available Protected Health Information required 
for Covered Entity to respond to an individual’s request for access to his or her Protected Health 
Information in accordance with Section 164.524 of the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules. If Business 
Associate maintains Protected Health Information electronically, it agrees to make such Protected Health 
Information available electronically to the applicable individual or to a person or entity specifically 
designated by such individual, upon such individual’s request.  
 
 g. At the request of Covered Entity and in a reasonable time and manner, Business Associate 
agrees to make available Protected Health Information required for amendment by Covered Entity in 
accordance with the requirements of Section 164.526 of the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules.  
 
 h. Business Associate agrees to document any disclosures of and make Protected Health 
Information available for purposes of accounting of disclosures, as required by Section 164.528 of the 
HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules.  
 
 i. Business Associate agrees that it will make its internal practices, books, and records relating to 
the use and disclosure of Protected Health Information received from, or created or received by Business 
Associate on behalf of, Covered Entity, available to the Secretary for the purpose of determining Covered 
Entity’s compliance with the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules, in a time and manner designated by the 
Secretary.  
 
 j. Business Associate agrees that, while present at any Covered Entity facility and/or when 
accessing Covered Entity’s computer network(s), it and all of its employees, agents, representatives and 
subcontractors will at all times comply with any network access and other security practices, procedures 
and/or policies established by Covered Entity including, without limitation, those established pursuant to 
the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules and the Red Flag Rules.  
 
 k. Business Associate agrees that it will not directly or indirectly receive remuneration in 
exchange for any Protected Health Information of an individual without the written authorization of the 
individual or the individual’s representative, except where the purpose of the exchange is: 
  
  1. for public health activities as described in Section 164.512(b) of the Privacy and 
Security Rules;  
 
  2. for research as described in Sections 164.501 and 164.512(i) of the Privacy and 
Security Rules, and the price charged reflects the costs of preparation and transmittal of the data for such 
purpose;  
 
  3. for treatment of the individual, subject to any further regulation promulgated by the 
Secretary to prevent inappropriate access, use, or disclosure of Protected Health Information;  
 
 
 
 
 

Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit C



4. for the sale, transfer, merger, or consolidation of all or part of Business Associate and due diligence 
related to that activity;  
  
  5. for an activity that Business Associate undertakes on behalf of and at the specific 
request of Covered Entity;  
 
  6. to provide an individual with a copy of the individual’s Protected Health Information 
pursuant to Section 164.524 of the Privacy and Security Rules; or  
 
  7. other exchanges that the Secretary determines in regulations to be similarly necessary 
and appropriate as those described in this Section III.k.  
 
 l. Business Associate agrees that it will not directly or indirectly receive remuneration for any 
written communication that encourages an individual to purchase or use a product or service without first 
obtaining the written authorization of the individual or the individual’s representative, unless:  
 
  1. such payment is for a communication regarding a drug or biologic currently prescribed 
for the individual and is reasonable in amount (as defined by the Secretary); or  
 
  2. the communication is made on behalf of Covered Entity and is consistent with the 
terms of this Agreement.  
 
 m. Business Associate agrees that if it uses or discloses patients’ Protected Health Information for 
marketing purposes, it will obtain such patients’ authorization before making any such use or disclosure. 
 

n.  Business Associate agrees to implement a reasonable system for discovery of breaches and 
method of risk analysis of breaches to meet the requirements of HIPAA, The HITECH Act, and the 
HIPAA Regulations, and shall be solely responsible for the methodology, policies, and procedures 
implemented by Business Associate. 

 
o.  Business Associate agrees to make internal practices, books, and records relating to the use 

and disclosure of Protected Health Information received from, or created or received by Business 
Associate on behalf of, Covered Entity available to the Secretary, in a reasonable time and manner as 
designated by the Covered Entity or the Secretary, for purposes of the Secretary determining Covered 
Entity’s compliance with the Privacy Rule. 

 
p. Business Associate agrees to mitigate, to the extent reasonably practicable, any harmful effect 

that is known to Business Associate of a use or disclosure of Protected Health Information by Business 
Associate in violation of the requirements of this Agreement.  

 
q. State Privacy Laws.  Business Associate shall understand and comply with state privacy laws 

to the extent that state privacy laws are not preempted by HIPAA or The HITECH Act. 
 

r. Business Associate acknowledges that in the event Business Associate violates subsections (k), 
(l) or (m) hereof, the provisions of section 1176 and 1177 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 1320d-5, 
1320d-6) shall apply to Business Associate with respect to such violation in the same manner as such 
provisions apply to Covered Entity.   
 
 
 

Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit C



 
 
IV.  BUSINESS ASSOCIATE’S MITIGATION AND BREACH NOTIFICATION 
 OBLIGATIONS  
 
 a. Business Associate agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is 
known to Business Associate of a use or disclosure of Protected Health Information by Business 
Associate in violation of the requirements of this Agreement.  
 
 b. Following the discovery of a Breach of Unsecured Protected Health Information, Business 
Associate shall notify Covered Entity of such Breach without unreasonable delay and in no case later than 
forty-five (45) calendar days after discovery of the Breach. A Breach shall be treated as discovered by 
Business Associate as of the first day on which such Breach is known to Business Associate or, through 
the exercise of reasonable diligence, would have been known to Business Associate.  
 
 c. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section IV.b., above, if a law enforcement official states to 
Business Associate that notification of a Breach would impede a criminal investigation or cause damage 
to national security, then:  
 
  1. if the statement is in writing and specifies the time for which a delay is required, 
Business Associate shall delay such notification for the time period specified by the official; or  
 
  2. if the statement is made orally, Business Associate shall document the statement, 
including the identity of the official making it, and delay such notification for no longer than thirty (30) 
days from the date of the oral statement unless the official submits a written statement during that time.  
 
Following the period of time specified by the official, Business Associate shall promptly deliver a copy of 
the official’s statement to Covered Entity.  
 
 d. The Breach notification provided shall include, to the extent possible:  
 
  1. the identification of each individual whose Unsecured Protected Health Information 
has been, or is reasonably believed by Business Associate to have been, accessed, acquired, used, or 
disclosed during the Breach;  
 
  2. a brief description of what happened, including the date of the Breach and the date of 
discovery of the Breach, if known;  
 
  3. a description of the types of Unsecured Protected Health Information that were 
involved in the Breach (such as whether full name, social security number, date of birth, home  
address, account number, diagnosis, disability code, or other types of information were involved;  
 
  4. any steps individuals should take to protect themselves from potential harm resulting 
from the Breach;  
 
  5. a brief description of what Business Associate is doing to investigate the Breach, to 
mitigate harm to individuals, and to protect against any further Breaches; and  
 
 
 

Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit C



  6. contact procedures for individuals to ask questions or learn additional information, 
which shall include a toll-free telephone number, an e-mail address, Web site, or postal address.  
 
  e. Business Associate shall provide the information specified in Section IV.d., above, to 
Covered Entity at the time of the Breach notification if possible or promptly thereafter as information 
becomes available. Business Associate shall not delay notification to Covered Entity that a Breach has 
occurred in order to collect the information described in Section IV.d. and shall provide such information 
to Covered Entity even if the information becomes available after the forty-five (45)-day period provided 
for initial Breach notification.  
 
V.  WARRANTIES OF BUSINESS ASSOCIATE  
 
Business Associate warrants:  
 
 a. That its internal practices, policies, and records relating to the use and disclosure of Protected 
Health Information will comply with the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules; and  
 
 b. That it will train all of its employees, agents, representatives, and subcontractors on the 
network access and other security practices, procedures and/or policies established by Covered Entity 
including, without limitation, those established pursuant to the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules and 
the Red Flag Rules prior to permitting such employees, agents, representatives, and subcontractors to be 
present at any Covered Entity facility and/or to access Covered Entity’s computer network(s).  
 
VI.  OBLIGATIONS OF COVERED ENTITY  
 
 a. Upon request of Business Associate, Covered Entity shall provide Business Associate with the 
notice of privacy practices that Covered Entity produces in accordance with Section 164.520 of the 
HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules.  
 
 b. Covered Entity shall provide Business Associate with any changes in, or revocation of, 
permission by an individual to use or disclose Protected Health Information, if such changes affect 
Business Associate’s permitted or required uses and disclosures.  
 
 c. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any restriction to the use or disclosure of 
Protected Health Information to which Covered Entity has agreed in accordance with Section 164.522 of 
the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules, and Covered Entity shall inform Business Associate of the 
termination of any such restriction, and the effect that such termination shall have, if any, upon Business 
Associate’s use and disclosure of such Protected Health Information.  
 
VII.  REQUIRED COMPLIANCE WITH RED FLAG RULES  
 
In the event that Business Associate is engaged to perform an activity in connection with any  
“covered account” as defined in 16 C.F.R. § 681.1 (as applicable to Covered Entity as a “creditor” and 
therefore to Business Associate as a “service provider” providing any service to Covered Entity), 
Business Associate agrees to: (i) fully adopt and comply with the Red Flag Rules currently in effect and 
as may be promulgated in the future; (ii) adopt a Red Flag program that is compliant with federal 
regulations as promulgated in 16 C.F.R. § 681.1; and (iii) take all necessary and appropriate steps to 
ensure that its activities undertaken as a part of this Agreement 
 
 

Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit C



are conducted in accordance with the Red Flag Rules and its Red Flag program, including, without 
limitation, ensuring the adoption of and continued compliance with reasonable policies and procedures 
designed to detect, prevent, and mitigate the risk of identity theft, detecting any Red Flag that may arise 
during the term of this Agreement, reporting any such Red Flag to Covered Entity, and taking any such 
further steps as may be necessary to prevent or mitigate identity theft.  
 
VIII.  TERM AND TERMINATION  
 
 a. Term. The Term of this Agreement shall be effective as of the date first written above, and 
shall terminate upon the later of the following events: (i) in accordance with Section VIII.c., when all of 
the Protected Health Information provided by Covered Entity to Business Associate or created or received 
by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity is destroyed or returned to Covered Entity or, if such 
return or destruction is infeasible, when protections are extended to such information; or (ii) upon the 
expiration or termination of the last of the Agreements.  
 
 b. Termination for Cause. Upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a material breach of this 
Agreement by Business Associate, Covered Entity shall have the right to immediately terminate this 
Agreement and the Agreements. If termination is not feasible, Covered Entity shall report such violation 
to the Secretary. 
  
 c. Effect of Termination.  
 
  1. Except as provided in paragraph 2. of this subsection, upon termination of this 
Agreement, the Agreements or upon request of Covered Entity, whichever occurs first, Business 
Associate shall within ten (10) days return or destroy all Protected Health Information received from 
Covered Entity, or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity. This provision 
shall apply to Protected Health Information that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of 
Business Associate. Neither Business Associate nor its subcontractors or agents shall retain copies of the 
Protected Health Information.  
 
  2. In the event that Business Associate determines that returning or destroying the 
Protected Health Information is infeasible, Business Associate shall provide within ten (10) days to 
Covered Entity notification of the conditions that make return or destruction infeasible. Upon mutual 
agreement of the Parties that return or destruction of Protected Health Information is infeasible, Business 
Associate shall extend the protections of this Agreement to such Protected Health Information and limit 
further uses and disclosures of such Protected Health Information to those purposes that make the return 
or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains such Protected Health Information.  
 
IX.  MISCELLANEOUS  
 
 a. Indemnification.  Business Associate shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Covered 
Entity, its directors, officers, employees, contractors and agents, against, and in respect of, any and all 
claims, losses, expenses, costs, damages, obligations, penalties, judgments, fines, assessments, awards,  
liabilities, or other expenses of any kind and nature whatsoever, including, without limitation, attorneys’ 
fees, expert witness fees, and costs of investigation, litigation, or dispute resolutions, relating to or arising 
out of any breach or alleged breach of this Agreement, or any Breach, by Business Associate or 
subcontractors or agents of Business Associate which Covered Entity may incur by reason of Business  
 
 
 
 

Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit C



Associate’s breach of or failure to perform any of its obligations pursuant to this Agreement and/or 
incurred by or on behalf of Business Associate in connection with the defense thereof.   
  
  b. No Rights in Third Parties. Except as expressly stated herein, in the HIPAA Privacy and 
Security Rules, or in the Red Flag Rules, the Parties to this Agreement do not intend to create any rights 
in any third parties.  
 
 c. Survival. The obligations of Business Associate under Section VIII(c) of this Agreement shall 
survive the expiration, termination, or cancellation of this Agreement, the Agreements, and/or the 
business relationship of the parties, and shall continue to bind Business Associate, its agents, employees, 
contractors, successors, and assigns as set forth herein.  
 
 d. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended or modified only in a writing signed by the 
Parties. The Parties agree that they will negotiate amendments to this Agreement to conform to any 
changes in the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules or Red Flag Rules as are necessary for Covered Entity 
to comply with the current requirements of the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules, the Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act, and the Red Flag Rules. In addition, in the event that either Party 
believes in good faith that any provision of this Agreement fails to comply with the then-current 
requirements of the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules or any other applicable legislation including, but 
not limited to, the Red Flag Rules, then such Party shall notify the other Party of its belief in writing. For 
a period of up to thirty (30) days, the Parties shall address in good faith such concern and amend the terms 
of this Agreement, if necessary to bring it into compliance. If, after such thirty (30)-day period, the 
Agreement fails to comply with the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules, the Red Flag Rules or any other 
applicable legislation, then either Party has the right to terminate this Agreement and the underlying 
arrangement upon written notice to the other party.  
 
 e. Assignment. Neither Party may assign its respective rights and obligations under this 
Agreement without the prior written consent of the other Party.  
 
f. Independent Contractor. None of the provisions of this Agreement are intended to create, nor will they 
be deemed to create, any relationship between the Parties other than that of independent parties 
contracting with each other solely for the purposes of effecting the provisions of this Agreement and any 
other agreements between the Parties evidencing their business relationship. 
  
 g. Governing Law. To the extent this Agreement is not governed exclusively by the HIPAA 
Privacy and Security Rules, the Red Flag Rules, or other provisions of federal statutory or regulatory law, 
it will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the state in which Covered Entity has 
its principal place of business. 
  
 h. No Waiver. No change, waiver, or discharge of any liability or obligation hereunder on any one 
or more occasions shall be deemed a waiver of performance of any continuing or other obligation, or shall 
prohibit enforcement of any obligation, on any other occasion.  
 

i. Interpretation. Any ambiguity of this Agreement shall be resolved in favor of a meaning that 
permits Covered Entity to comply with the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules and the Red Flag Rules.  
 
 j. Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions of this Agreement will remain 
in full force and effect.  

Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit C



 k. Notice. Any notification required in this Agreement shall be made in writing to the 
representative of the other Party who signed this Agreement or the person currently serving in that 
representative’s position with the other Party.  
 
 l. Certain Provisions Not Effective in Certain Circumstances. The provisions of this Agreement 
relating to the HIPAA Security Rule shall not apply to Business Associate if Business Associate does not 
receive any Electronic Protected Health Information from or on behalf of Covered Entity.  
 
     m. Disclaimer. Covered Entity makes no warranty or representation that compliance by Business 
Associate with this Agreement, HIPAA, The HITECH Act, or the HIPAA Regulations will be adequate 
or satisfactory for Business Associate’s own purpose.  Business Associate is solely responsible for all 
decisions made by Business Associate regarding the safeguarding of PHI and compliance with these 
rules.   

n.  Ownership of Information.  Covered Entity holds all right, title, and interest in and to the PHI 
and Business Associate does not hold and will not acquire by virtue of this Agreement or by virtue of 
providing goods or services to Covered Entity, any right, title, or interest in or to the PHI or any portion 
thereof. 

 
 o.  Right to Injunctive Relief. Business Associate expressly acknowledges and agrees that the 
breach, threatened breach, by it of any provision of this Agreement may cause Covered Entity to be 
irreparably harmed and that Covered Entity may not have an adequate remedy at law.  Therefore, 
Business Associate agrees that upon such breach, or threatened breach, Covered Entity will be entitled to 
seek injunctive relief to prevent Business Associate from commencing or continuing any action 
constituting such breach without having to post a bond or other security and without having to prove the 
inadequacy of any other available remedies.  Nothing in this paragraph will be deemed to limit or abridge 
any other remedy available to Covered Entity at law or in equity 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year written 
above.  
 
 
Business Associate:     Covered Entity: 
 
EMS Management & Consultants, Inc. Vestavia Hills Fire Department 
   
 
By: _________________________________ By: _________________________________  
     
Title:________________________________ Title:________________________________  
    
Date:_____________________________ Date:_____________________________ 

Resolution Number 4852 

Exhibit C



Resolution Number 4850 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4850 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A BID FOR SHAC PHASE II AND 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER 

AN AGREEMENT FOR SAID CONSTRUCTION 

 

 WHEREAS, on March 9, 2016, bids were opened and publicly read for the Sicard 

Hollow Athletic Complex (SHAC) Park Improvements for a trail, HNP C013060; and 

 WHEREAS, on March 28, 2016, by way of Resolution Number 4813, the City Council 

approved the bid submitted by CB&A; and  

 WHEREAS, the City Council approved Resolution Number 4813 with the understanding 

that portion of the work would be donated, which did not materialize; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby rescinds Resolution Number 4813; and  

 WHEREAS, on May 25, 2016, bids were opened and publicly read for the Sicard 

Hollow Athletic Complex (SHAC) Park Improvements, HNP C013060; and 

 WHEREAS, two bids were received detailed as follows:  (1) CB&A base bid in the 

amount of $771,848 for a total with alternates of $1,622,380; and the (2) Pennington Group in 

the amount of $844,475 for a total with alternates of $1,548,214; and  

 WHEREAS, it was determined that CB&A did not have the proper contractor’s license; 

and  

 WHEREAS, it was determined that only one bid submitted by the Pennington Group 

was in accordance with the terms, specifications and requirements of the bid; and 

  WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council approved Resolution 4783 authorizing and 

funding $599,000 for the second phase of the Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex; and  

 WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Foundation will cover any and all costs above the 

$599,000 in phases; and  

 WHEREAS, the Public Services Director, in an Interoffice Memorandum dated June 21, 

2016, reviewed the bid submittal and recommended the acceptance of Pennington Group with 

the alternates for a total not to exceed $1,548,214; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager concurs with the Public Services Director 

recommendation of the acceptance of Pennington Group with the alternates for a total not to 

exceed $1,548,214; and 



Resolution Number 4850 

Page 2 

 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council find it is in the best interest of the public and 

accept said recommendation. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The bid submitted by Pennington Group in an amount not to exceed $1,548,214 is 

hereby accepted as submitted; and 

2. Funding for said bid shall be derived from SHAC Improvement funding as approved 

in Resolution Number 4783 with the Parks and Recreation Foundation covering any 

and all cost above $599,000 in phases; and 

3. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute and deliver said contract for 

construction following the written approval of the City Attorney; and 

4. This Resolution Number 4850 shall become effective upon adoption and approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 11
th

 day of July, 2016. 

 

 

 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 

 

 



Resolution Number 4850 

Exhibit A 

 

Vestavia Hills Public Services 

1973 Merryvale Road 

Vestavia Hills, Al 35216 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMO 
 

Date:   June 21, 2016 

 

TO:  Jeff Downes 

  City Manager 

 

From:  Brian Davis 

  Public Service Director 

 

RE:  Sicard Hollow Phase II 

 

In conjunction with the Vestavia Hills Parks and Recreation Foundation, invitations to 

bid were advertised for construction of Phase II of the SHAC passive park area. Bids 

were opened on May 25, 2016, at 10:00 am, and 2 bids were received as follows: 

 

 CB&A base bid was $771,848 

 Pennington Group base bid was $844,475 

 

 CB&A base bid and all alternates was $1,622,380 

 Pennington Group base bid and all alternates was $1,548,214 

 

After the bids were received, it was determined that CB&A did not have the proper 

contractor’s license, and they were disqualified, leaving Pennington Group as the lone 

bidder. 

 

The city council authorized $599,000 through resolution 4783. It is my recommendation 

to accept the Pennington Group bid with all alternates in coordination with the Parks and 

Recreation Foundation to cover any costs above $599,000. If possible, I would like to 

present to the council for a first read on June 27, 2016 and approval on July 11, 2016. 

 

On March 28, 2016, the council approved resolution 4813 for trail improvements at 

SHAC.  We need to rescind this resolution as part of this work was going to be donated, 

but the logistics could not be worked out with the vendor.  This work was folded into the 

bid prices above.   

 

CC:  Rebecca Leavings 



Resolution Number 4850 

Exhibit A



Amount Item Carried Total
771,848 Base Bid 771,848
187,234 Kompan 959,082 Playground and Fitness Equipment, Surface
113,000 Splash Pad 1,072,082 Materials and Install
83,505 Pavilion & Tables 1,155,587 Materials and Install
80,000 Arch/Eng Fees 1,235,587

57,715 Stair ALT 1,293,302
73,388 Landscape ALT 1,366,690

215,679 Futsal ALT 1,582,369
25,229 Bridge ALT 1,607,598
14,782 Wildflower ALT 1,622,380

Amount Item Carried Total
844,475 Base Bid 844,475
187,234 Kompan 1,031,709 Playground and Fitness Equipment, Surface
113,000 Splash Pad 1,144,709 Materials and Install
83,505 Pavilion & Tables 1,228,214 Materials and Install
80,000 Arch/Eng Fees 1,308,214

45,000 Stair ALT 1,353,214
75,000 Landscape ALT 1,428,214
90,000 Futsal ALT 1,518,214
25,000 Bridge ALT 1,543,214
5,000 Wildflower ALT 1,548,214

CB&A

Pennington Group

Resolution Number 4850 

Exhibit A



Resolution Number 4851 

Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4851 
 

 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE 

AND INSTALLATION OF VINYL FLOORING 

PLANKS AND FOR THE REMOVAL OF THE 

EXISTING FLOORING FOR THE COMMUNITY 

ROOM AT THE VESTAVIA HILLS LIBRARY IN 

THE FOREST 

 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest has analyzed the need for a 

vinyl flooring planks in the Community Room; and 

WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest has determined that there is 

a need for vinyl flooring planks designed for durability, to be waterproof and stain 

resistant; and 

WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Library Foundation voted on June 14, 2016 for 

$13,500 to be allocated from Fund 13/Donations for the purchase of the new flooring per 

City Council approval; and  

WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest has requested that the 

expense for purchase and installation vinyl flooring planks and removal of the existing 

flooring of approximately $13091.02 be expensed to Fund 13/Donations; and  

 WHEREAS, the Director of the Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest in a letter 

dated June 20, 2016 (Exhibit A) recommended the approval of said purchase; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has reviewed the request and has recommended the 

approval of said purchase; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have concurred with the City Manager 

and feel it is in the best public interest to accept the request as presented and 

recommended by the City Manager.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to purchase the materials and 

installation of the vinyl flooring planks and for the removal of the existing 

flooring in the amount not to exceed $13,091.02 to be expensed to Fund 

13/Donations account; and 

2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its approval and 

adoption. 



Resolution Number 4851 

Page 2 

 

 

 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11
th

 day of July, 2016. 

 

 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 

      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

 

 

Rebecca Leavings 

City Clerk 



Resolution Number 4851 

Exhibit A



Resolution Number 4851 

Exhibit A



Resolution Number 4851 

Exhibit A



Resolution Number 4851 

Exhibit A



Resolution Number 4851 

Exhibit A



Resolution Number 4851 

Exhibit A


	2016_0627CC_A

	2016_0613CC_M
	Resolution 4848
	Resolution 4846
	Resolution 4847
	Resolution 4849
	Resolution 4852
	Resolution 4850
	Resolution 4851



